UNITED NATIONS MO s b

Distr.
ECONOMIC S
AND %Igﬁgﬁégawsu
SOCIAL COUNCIL

ORIGINAL: FRENCH

R L T T T L Ly e L T e T T Y T T T T T T L L R LR S L L LT L LT L ALt

UNITED NATIONS CHILDREN'S FUND
EXECUTIVE BOARD
SUMMARYVRECORD OF THE HUNDRED AND THIRTY-SECOND MEETING
Held at Headquarters, New;York,
on Priday, 17 September 1954, at 10,45 a.m.
CONTENTS

Report of the Committee on Administrative Budget (E/ICEF/L.59%)
Statement by Mr. Fenaux, Chairman of the Committee on Administrative
Budget ' |

Report of the Programme Committee: Section I1I

Other business | |

Sh-25772



E/ICEF/SR.132
English
Page 2

PRESENT: -

.Chairman:

Menmbers:

Mr. AMANRICH

Also present:

Represendatives of specialized agencies:

Mr. LINDT

Mr. GALVEZ
Mr. CUTTS
Mr. LHOIR
Mr. DA MOTA

Mrs. SINCIAIR =

Mr. TSAQ -

Mr. RYBAR

Mr. GALLEGOS
Mr. BUGNARD ;

Mrs. TSALDARIS
Mr. RAJAN "
Mr. UMARY

 Mrs. HARMAN

Miss CAO PINNA
Mr. SOLLI

Mr. CALLE CALLE
Mr. GARCIA

Mr. BUNCHOEM
Mr. KRIVITSKY

Mr. BARNES

Mr. MULLIKEN

‘M. KOS

Mr. FENAUX

Dr« VAN VEEN ;
Dr. WORK

Dr. COIGNY ;
Mrs. MEAGHER

Switzerland_ -

Argentins
Australisa
Belgium
Brazil

Canada

Chinsg
Czechoslovakia
Ecueador

France

Greece

" India

Irag
Israel
Italy
Norway
Peru
Philippines
Thailand

_Union of Soviet Socialist

Republics

United Kingdom of Great Britain
snd Northern Irelsnd

United States of America
Yugoslavia

Chairman of the Committee on
Administrative Budget

Food and Agriculture
Orgenization (FAO)

World Health Organization (WHO)



E/ICEF/SR.132

English
Pege 5
Representatives of non-governmental organizstions:
Mrs. FREEMAN NGO Committee on UNICEF
Cetegory B: ~ Mrs. KADANE . : Consultative Council of
) . Jewish Organizations
Miss GUTHRIE International Alliance of
Women
Mr. GAGNON International Catholic Child
. ‘ Bureau
Mcs. FREEMAN International Council of Women
Mrs. WALSER . Women's International Lesgue
- ) for Peace and Freedom
Mr. JACOBY ~ World Jewish Congress
Mrs. ZIZZANIA ; World Union of Catholic
. Mrs. SCHAEFER " Women's Orgenizations
United Netions Secretariat : _
| Miss BRANSCOMBE Department of Social Affairs
 UNICEF Administretion:
Mr. PATE Executive Director
Mr. HEYWARD '~ Deputy Executive Director
Dr. BORCIC _ '~ Deputy Executive Director
Mr. DAVEE = - Director, Latin America
Regional Office
Mr. EGGER Director, Africa, Burope and
s ' Eastern Mediterranean Regional:
_ i Office '
Mr. KEENY Director, Asia Regional Office
Du'v MARTI Chief, Africa Area Oifice

Mr, CHARNOW Secretary of the Board



E/ICEF/SR.132
English
Page U4

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET (£/ICEF/L.59L)

Mr., FENAUX (Chairmen of the Committee on Administrative Budget)
submitted the Committee 's report on i{ts seventeenth session (17-18 May 1954}
and on its extraordinary meetings of 17 and 18 March 1954; which-had been
devoted to an exchange of views on the orgenizational structure of the WNICEF
Administration end the deployment of staff.

" At the March meetings the Committee had undertaken a kind of clinicel
exemination of the Administration's operation end hed indulged in some self-
eriticism. Those méetings hed been deliberately informal, no records or
report had been prepared end no resolutions adopted,'but they had nevertheless
proved useful and conclusive both to the Committéé members and to the various
branches of the Administrations The Regionai Directors hed been present.

It had become quite clear that the UNICEF Administration wes operating remarkebly
well - slthough there was room for some'improvement - and that its future

must be safeguarded by affording rellef to senior staff. A good administration,
" whose efficiency depended mainly on experience and continuity, could not be
improvised. Theat, moreover, was the feeling which prevailed in the orgsns of '
the United Nations, as had been shown by the discussions in the Fifth Comittee,
end it was also the feeling of the Secretary-Genersal himself.

Prompted by its concern for those matters, the Committee had approved such
measures as the estdblishment of a second post of Deputy Executive Director and
had expressed the view that the application of the basic principle of geographical
distribution in the recruitment of rersonnel must not prejudice the qyaiity of
the staff recruilted. :

Peragraph 7 of the Committee 's report, concerning the 1953 financial yeear,
dealt with the policy pursued in financing plens of operations, under which
UNICEF's aid was spreed over severel finencial years in order to ensure the\\
contlnuity and completion of projects started and &t the seme time to induce
Governments to meke longer-renge commitments.

Paragraph 10 indicated the maegnitude of 1nternel maxching by Governments,
thereby meeting the requirements of those delegations which hed shown the
#mportanbe they atteched to the matching principles. Paragraphs 13 and 1k



E/ICEF/SR.132
English
Page 5

set forth the respective proportions of expenditures for assistence, for
operational serv1ces end for administrative costs. The Committee naturally
took the view that UNICEF should give a maximun of assistance and expend a
minimum of its funds on administrative costs. Furthermore, the averege
expenditure on administrative end operational services seemed low when
distributed over the period between the setting up of the Fund and 1953, but
in recent years it hed shown a definite upward trend., That increase was
uncoubtedly due to the development of UNICEF's mctivities but not to curb it
would be dangerous. The Fund's reputation for good management, which was so
often cited as an example, was certeinly largely the result of efficient
administration end budgeting.; It was reesonable, however, to make the
necessary distinction between administrative service and operationsl service
expenditures. In that respect the Fund would benefit from the examination which
the Advieory Committee intended to underteke of administrative and budgetary
qpestions relating to all United Nations progremmes financed from extra-
budgetary funds.

Subject to those observations, the Committee recommended that the Executive
Board should spprove the estimated edministrative and operationel services
budget for 1955 set forth in peragrapn 22.,0f the report. Moreover, there was
reason to hope that the forthcoming review of the structure of the UNICEF
Secretariat would leed to & reduction in the budgetary estimates for 1955 and
to a reduction in sdministrative service and operational service expenditures.
In that conmnexion the Committee considered it desirable that the Chalrman of
the Executlve Board should be consulted at an appropriate stage in that survey,
and it asked the Board to support that view, &s no one was better qualified than
its Chairman to justify the existence of the Fund, end to emphasize its needs
and eminently humeniterien aims, of which some experts in edministrative and
budgetary matters were not always aware. '

With reference to contingencies, it was pointed out in paregraph 17 of the
report that a balance of $8,900 remained in the Administrative Contingency Fund
of 195k, which hed originally emounted to $100,000. The difference had been
used for the edditional procurement of supplies and for the remuneration of



E/ICEF/SR.132
English
Page 6

additional staff, and also for the acquisition of electric accounting equipment
and fortqther expenses caused by the mechanization of acéounts at Headquarters.
In thet connexion it should be pointed out thet the Administration was
unfortunately faced with the necessity of making provision for the end of 1954
for the reimbursement bf netional income tex payeble by the senior officials
vho were United States citizens, 1In order to meet that situation it might be |
necessary to esk the Board to pay en edditional .smount for contingencieé into
the A@ministraxivg,Contingency Fund before the end of the year., It seémed, .
however, that those expenditures might be covered by drawing on funds sét aside
for other items. At all events, it was for the Board to authorize the Committee
 to approve the opening of credits for the reimbursement of 1954 national income
tax. . ,

:‘Paraggaph 28 of the repért referred to the Executive Director’'s remark that
meny of the programmes at present being plenned might set a pattern within ‘
countries for the next ten to twenty years or more. The responsibility placed
upon UNICEF was therefore a heavy one, and staffing must be adequate to meet
the need,

. Mr. BARNES (United Kingdom) recalled that the United Kingdem end
United States delegations in the Committee on Administrative Budget had not
shareqjthe_other members ' opinion on the question of the budgetary recommendaﬁions
for the 1955 financisl yeer. Hié delegation's views, summerized in paregraph 30
of thg_Cqmmittéefs report (E/ICEF/L.594), had not changed, It attﬁched great
importance to the question of UNICEF's administrétive expenses and wes concerned
that the£gqod reputation for economicgl administration which UNICEF hed acquired
might;bg_Jeopardized by the trend of increasing administrati#e expendituré.
It felt, therefore, thet it was essential to achieve all possible economies of
staffing and streémliﬁing of procedure., 'He pdrtiqularly sﬁressed twoJ '
conqidggations, namely: (1) that the work loed which at present fell on the
top levelgiof:theuadmin;strative staff could be diminished by delegating to the
Regional Offices some of the detalled work at present done in the Programme
Division, énd“(a),that in view of the forthcoming reorganization of the structure



E/ICEF/SR.132

English
Page T

of the United Nations Secretariat, which would include a survey of the
administrative organization, the staffing and work load of the UNICEF
Administration (E/ICEF/L.590, paragraph 1), the Executive Board should, pending
the issue of the Secretary-Ceneral's report, not suthorize any increases in
staff which were not of vital urgency. '

Mr. K0S (Yugoslavia) said that although the administrative and
operational budget estimates for 1955 were higher than those for 1954, they
remained within the 10 per cent limit of the total expenditure of the Fund.

The increase in the number of progremmes and their extension to new regions, '
including Africa, had automatically led to an increase in administrative costs.
The important fact was that UNICEF was obtainiog first-class results throughout
the world and that its action was particularly effective. The administrative
costs could easily be lowered, the largest possible cuts made in UNICEF staff
and the work done by correspondence, but it was doubtful whether fn thet case

the results would be as good as they were at present. Furthermore, personsal
contacts between the representatives of the Administration and the local
authorities made it possible to prepare work in greater detail, thereby avoiding
errors which might prove very costly.. The Yugoslav delegation sccordingly did
not consider that the proposed administrative costs for 1955 could be reduced.

In comparison with those of other United Nations agencies, the éxpenses of
UNICEF were still very low. He was abie to state from his own personal
experience that the Administration always saw to it that no additional '
expenditure, likely to cause a decrease, however small, in the funds assigned-

to improving the coqdition of children throughout the world, would be undertaken,

Mr. UMART (Iraq) was convinced that the administrative staff of UNICEF
would have to be increased. In the Committee on Administrative Budget, his
delegation had carefully examined the proposals made to that effect and had
approved them, That increase in staff, particularly in the higher grades, was
Justified by the fact that the Fund was no longer on a temporary organization
‘established to deal with certain emergency'situations, but had been set up on
8 permanent basis.



E/ICEF/SR.132.. -
English
Page 8

Mr. GARCIA (Philippines) fully agreed that the administrative costs
of UNICEF should be kept as low as possible. On the other hand, if too much
were done in that direction, the success.of the programmes might be endangered.
As could be secen in the Philippines, the Fund used an extremely small staff
to carry out a tremendous taske. His delegation would therefore approve the
proposed 1ncrease} which it considered necessary.

Mr,. MULLIKEN (United States of America) maintained the attitude adopted
by the United States delegation in the Committee on Administrative Budget. The
United States delegation maintained its reservations as to the amount of the
administrative and operational budget estimates approved by the Committee., It
expressed the hope that stronger efforts would be made to cut down edministrative
expenditures in the interests of providing services to the children of the world.

‘Mr. TSAO (Chinn) wighed to point out that the situation had changed.
In the early days of UNICEF, administrative costs had not exceeded 5 per cent of
the total budget, but the revenue of the Fund at that time had been proportionately
higher than-at present and further, the programmes had been far fewer., Taking -
into account the scope of current progremmes and the resoﬁrceé available to UNICEF,
it might be said that administrative costs were still quite low. Furthermore,
the type of assistance giveh by the Fund had changed. At the outset it had taken
the form of. emergency aid in food and clothing, but now it included health
programmes and maternal and child welfare programmes, the preparation of which
required much more;detailed study by the Administration. The increase in
administrative costs was therefore fully justified and his delegation would
approve it.

Mrs. SINCIAIR (Canada) said that the Canadian delegation had been -
favourably impressed by the Administration's efforts to keep administrative costs
as low as possible. It shogldvbé stressed that the United Nations had entrusted
UNICEF with the task of helping -children throughout the world. To do that



E/ICEF/SR.132
English
Page 9

adequately staff must be located in many areas and must be able to travel. = To
spend the Fund's resources properly, there must be staff available to assist
Governments'in planning and executing projects. It was poor policy to economize
at the expense of the Fund's efficiency.

One possible solution would be an increase in contributions from Governments.
If they were raised by 20 per cent, for example, UNICEF would have larger sums
at ites disposal and its administrative costs would not increase proportionately.

Mr. PATE (Executive Divector) explained in that connexion that he would
‘endeavour in the year ahead to collect & sum equivalent to the~$20,000,000'which
the Board had set itself as s target.

| Mr. CUITS (Australia) agreed that the trend towards increased

administrative expenses ought to be either arrested or slowed down, but to
decrease those expenses might hamper the efficient ¢peration of UNICEF., As the
representative of Chins had pointed out, the increase in those expenses was
Justifiqd by the scale on which the Fund's activities were being carried out. It
might be better to examine how far contributions from Governments could be
increased than to dwell on the tendency to an increase in administrative costs.
With regard to the division of labour between Headquarters and the regionsl
offices, suggested by the United Kingdom representative, he agreed with the view
of the Cémmittee on Administrative Budget, which had not approved that solution.

It must also be noted that 45 per cent of the administrative budget was
devoted to operational services. That 45 per cent was devotedvto the welfare of
children. He hoped that administrative costs would diminish, though in the
present state of affairs it would not be advisable to reduce'them, and he sgreed
with the fepreéenfative of Canada that contributions from Governments might be

increased,

Mr. AMANRICH (France) said that the operation and structure of the
Administration and the budget estimates for 1955 had been most éarefully studied
by the Committee on Administrative Budget, That Committee had scrupulously
respected the principle of economy, while endeavouring to ensure that the
Administration should operate as efficiently as possible.



_E/éier/sn.lie
English
Page 10

Furthermore, the: experience acquired by the Frénch delegation in many
Uniﬁed Nations bodies eiabled it to state that the administration of UNICEF
comgared very: favourably with that of those bodies. It would accordingly approve
the recommendations in the report of the Committee on‘Administrative Budget,
espepially those in paragraphs 22, 2k and 27.

\» ;o

| * Mr. UMART: (Ir&Q): quoting as'an example the anti-yaws campaign in
South-East Asia, pointed out that the results obtained by the Fund in various
countries were truly remarkable. UNICEF had been able to aseist millions of
children and all possible meéans of - continuing 1te work must be made available to
it. [ Modern science had discovered miraculous remedies for disease, but UNICEF
had performed another miracle in that it had extended the benefits of those
remedies to millions-of peérsons. The representative’of'France hed made it clear.
that the Administration was operating most ‘efficiently. He would therefore
approve the incresse in administrative costs. R h

% -+ Mre. CAO PINNA {Italy) also approved the increase proposed in
paragraph 32 .of the report. In view of the number of persons who benefited from
UNICHF programmes, ‘the increase in administrative costs vas fully Justified. '

|
|

- Mrs. SINCLAIR (Canada) said that the term "principal" used in paragraph 7
might e misleading as it suggested that UNICEF vas attempting to set up a .
reserve fund rather than to spend the funds which it received.

: Mr.'HEYWARD'(beputy Executive Director) saidithat the. term “prineipal". .
had been drawn from the balance sheet, appearing in the Finanq1al Report of _
UNICEF (E/ICEF/261 and Corr.l) approved by the Board of Auditors. An effort
would be made to find e more satisfactory term. However it might be, the
purpose of the paragraph vas to explain why at the end of a given financial year
there! should be & surplus of assets qver liabilities representing mainly assistance
allocated to projects but not yet delivered. »

H



£ /ICEF/SR+132
English
Page 11

The CHAIRMAN said that the repert would contain a eummary of the
statements of representatives. ._The_discussioh'had cleerly-demonstrated how
anxious the Board was to keep’administrative extenSes as low as was compatitle
with the efficient functioning of the Fund.,

He pfoposed that the recommendation in paragreph 22 of the report of the
Committee on Administrative Budget should be adopted.
The recommendation was adopted.

The CHAIRMAN proposcd that the authorization mentioned in paragraph 39
of the introduction of the progreés report of the-EXecutive Director
(E/ICEF/267/Add.1) should be granted.

That authorization was'apérOVed.

The CHAIRMAN, on behalf of himself end of the representatives thanked
Mr, Fenaux for his excellent statement on the activities of the Committee "on
Administrative Budget. ‘ "

REPORT OF THE PROGRAMME COMMITTEE SECTION III

, Mr. RAJAN (India) (Chainwan, Progranme Committee) presented section III
‘of the report of the Programme Conmittee which dealt with recommended
apportionments got involving new funds and also with the financial relations
with FAO and WHO. |

Mr. CULTS (Australia) pointed out, in connexion with projects -jointly
assisted with FAO and WHO, that the Programme Committee had merely decided that
UNICEF Administration should consult'the two specialized ageﬁcies with a view
to the adoption.of a wniform term; thus it might be better to repléce the
word "division" in the last sentence of paragraph‘B of the report by the word
"terminology". .

. It was so decided.

Section III of the report of the Programme Committee was approved,




E/ICEF/SR.132
English ' |
Pooe 12

Mr. RAJAN (Cheirmen of the Programme Committee) introduced the
summaries of programme recommendations by the Ixecutive Director, which had been
approved by the Programme Committee (E/ICEF/L.683/Rev.l). He drew the
Executive Board's attention to document E/ICEF/689, showing the resources
available for allocation. If all the apportionments out of new funds
(E/ICEF/L.683/Rev.1, page 3) were epproved, there would be an unalloceted balance
of $1,229,665 at the end of the present sescion.

The Programme Committee therefore recommended that ell those apportionments
should bte approved by the Executive Board. |

The recommended epportionments were approved.

Mr. LIOIR (Belgium) said that his delegation had been happy to signify
its complete agreement with all the Progremme Committee's recammehdations. He
took the opportunity of paying tribute to the Committee, whose work had been
marked by & high degree of impartiality end by the greatést generosity for all
countries whiéh requested UNICEF's assisteance. e also expressed his
eppreciation of, and admiration for, all the members of the Administration,
especially the Executive Director, his immediate assistants and the Directors
of the Regional Offices, who were working with unflagging devotion. The
Belgian delegation welcomed the fact that UNICEF's progremmes hed been expanded:
besides the emergency assistance for which it had been established, UNICEF was
now working to control the main endemic diseases and to improve the living and
health conditions of large numbers of people.

The Belgian deiegation wished to express certain views which implied no
criticism but were merely evidence of its desire that UNICEF's work should be
even further improved. Of course, UNICEF's aim wes to work for children, not
to submit reports; however, it would help the Executive Board and all those
interested in the Fund's work if they could have aveileble & general picture,
of a humen and living kind, of conditions in the countries which requested
the Fﬁnd's assistance, a survey of the projects proposed and an oufline of any
problems arising after the Fund's intervention. In that comnexion, he
emphasized the importance of the visit that had béen mede by members of the
Programme Committee to five Central Americen countries. They had seen UNICEF's



E/ICEF/SR.132
English
Page 13

echievements at first hand end hed thus been sble to make & detailed and
moving report on the situation to the Executive Board. It would be wvell 1f
directors of regional offices could submit similar reports to the Executive
Board in future, ) .

- It would also be of advantage if the Administration would prepare documents
end tebles indiceting, for each country assisted, the total number of inhdbitants
involved and of direct recipients of UNICEF supplies. Further, in view gf
the humeniterien nature of the Fund's work, the value of observations such es
those made by the representatlve of Irag with regard to the situationqu

illiterates in the Eastern world could not be over-emphasized. In short, it

should be borne in mind that the Executive Board's view of the importance'ofr
e progremme depended on the need for the programme and on the extént agd the.
continuity of results emong other considerations. ‘

Having expressed its congratulations and its views, the Belgian delegation

‘ wished to ralse a number of questions, not in order that they might be answered

but so that they might be borne in mind by all. In the enthusiasm of the _
assistance generously grented to suffering peoples, was it always ebsolutely
certain that the great fundementel principles of UNICEF were and would continue
to be ‘applied? The question did not arise from.any systematic scepticism on
his part. With regard to relations with the specimlized agencies, itqhad
been sald on mahy occasions that there was complete co-operation, especially
with WHO end FAO; and the Belgian delcgation was sure of that. But did

that co-operation go deep enough, or was it not sometimes merely superficiel?
In that connexion, the question of the reimbursement of expenditure by one
organization to. another should be pettled, end agreement reached on the question
of joint programmes, as soon es possible. It was understood that UNICEF took
no action without where necessary requesting the technicél advice of FAQ or of
WHO on metters which ceme within their competence. That was merely a matter

of consultetion, involving little time or expense.. But in some cases things

were very different. Supposing, for exemple, a request for assistance came
from & country with a great and chronic food deficiency. WHO was consulted to
ascertain whether anything could be done to counteract the effects of the , .
deficiency on the victims, and how much milk or other products were necessary



E/ICEF/SR.132
English
Pare 14

to put a temporéry stop to the situstion; and FAO was consulted in order to
ascertain whether the country could produce enowh foodstuffs, whet crovs should
be encoureged, and so fortit. If WHO decided to mssist in setting up health
centres for the cure and prevention of the effects of food deficiency, if FAO
decided to take part in order to encourage the introduction of new crops and the
selection of livestock, end if UNICEF, for its pert, decided to launch a long-
term food campaign, that would be a genuine joint progremme, and it would be

the duty of each agency to finence its own part of the programme. That

example impelled Mr. Lhoir to ask the following question: did UNICEF take

all necessary steps, in such cases, to ensure that the health centres which

had. been‘set‘up'continued to function and that food resources were definitely
augmented; in order to prevent the return of the evil it had been hoped to
remedy? The same question obviously arose in connexion with meternal and

child welfaré, the control of endemic disemses etc.

According to & basic principle of UNICEF, every Government which received
asslistance undertook to continue the Fund's work after the agreed programme had
been carriéd out. Was it absolutely sure that all the cempaigns carried out
so far were being continued by the responsible authorities? Was it certain
that all services set up with UNICEI''s assistance remained public services
and that they would never serve private interests? No one could answer forv
the future, but UNICEF was already in e position to cast a backward glance and
decide whether its work was achieving lasting results. Belgilum, for its part,
would e heppy to submit a report, say in a year's time, on the results |
achieved in the Belgian Congo and Ruande-Urundi.

He hoped that his delegation's views were shared by all members of the
Executive Board. He reiterated his congratulations and his words of
encouragement to the Administration of UNICEF, and hoped that relations between
UNICEF organs and the specialized mgencies would become increasingly closer and
more complete, and that UNICEF's working principles would always be scrupulously -
adhered to. |

He was happy to state that Belgium's comtribution to the 1954 budget would.
probebly be greater than the estimeted figure, and that the 1955 contribution
would be still greater. In orcer to help solve the fish meal question, moreover,



B LCul'/GF e Lo
English
Page 15

the Belgian Section of UNICEF intended, if FAO could furnish it with specimens,
to caerry out experiments end observations, in agreement with the Government -
ard the WHO and FFAO secticic conserii. U ‘n bulgium.

The CHAIRMAN thanked the Belgian representative for the very useful
suggestions he had Just made, in direct or guestion form. It would undoubtedly
be of value for the Executive Board in 1955 to study them, especially thcse,
relating to co-operation with the specialized agencies and the question concerning
reporté on results achieved thanks to UNICEF assistance.

OTHER BUSINESS

Mrs. FREEMAN (Non-Governmertal Orgenization Committee on UNICEF),
spesking es Chairman of the Sub-Committee on Nutrition of the NGO Committee on
UNICEF, drew the Executive Board's attention to the question of adding synthetic
vitemins to skimmed milk. ‘

It had long been estdblishéd that the dehydration of milk destroyed
vitemins A and D. As thosé two vitamins vere very impoftant for a child's
growth, UNICEF tried to make up for their aebsence from milk by supplying fish
oil cepsules. It was now possible, by a simple and inexpensive method, to
add synthetic vitamins A eand D to powdered milk, either at the time the milk
was dehydrated or when it was reconstituted.

She -therefore asked the Executive Board kindly to give that point a&ll the
attention it warranted. | '

The CHAIRMAN observed that the Executive Board's report to the
Economic and Social Council was usually prepared by e drafting commitiee of
which the Chairmen of the Executive Board and the Cheirman of the Programme
Committee were ex officio members. He suggested that the representatives of
Australia and the Philippines should also be members of the drafting committee.

It was so decided. ' :




% ‘ The CHAIRMAN said thet the Executive Board must elect its officers
foréleS- In &rder that the new officers might be able to take up thelr duties
at the beginning of the year, he sujgested that they should be elected in
Decgmﬁer 195k, The exact date would be fixed later, after consultation with
theimémbers of the Board and the Depertment of Conference Services.

| %t vas so decided.

! Mr, HEYWARD (Deputy Executive Director) gave some information about
the UNICEF £ilm strip which had been shown to Board members. It could be .
rep:oduced at little cost and projected with relatively inexpensive equipment.
The?pﬁesent film strip could be bought for $3, or en equivalent sum, by all
peréoﬁs,or organizations wishing to promote the work of UNICEF., It would in
partithar be used in connexion with the forthcoming campaign of the United Nations
Appeal for Children.  The Department of Public Information would send copies to
all United Nations Information Centres. There were three versions - Engliéh,
Frenchwand Spanish.

' A second film strip had been made for use in elementary schools. It would
Be shown in thousands of United States schools. The Department of Public
Information would also send copies to United Nations Information Centres for the
use pf all countries wishing to show it in their elementary schools.

. The CHAIRMAN said that the Execuﬁive Board had completed its agepda
for the session.

Mr. BUGNARD (France), speaking on behalf of all the members of the
Executxve Board, thanked and congratulated Mr. Lindt for the outstanding manner
in whldh he had conducted the Board's work., His firmmess and courtesy had
grea@ly.contributgd to the smooth working of the debates. By his ﬁntirihg‘
efforts for UNICEF he had -set his colleagues a magnificent example,

‘Mri» Bugnard also wished to congratulate all the members of the Administration,

especially Mr. Pate, his assistants and the Directors of the Regional Offices,
who hadisubmitted?excellent reports to the Executive Board. '

The CHAIRMAN thanked Mr. Bugnard and declared the session closed.

The meeting rose at 12,40 p.m.






